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securities, preferred stock, or warrants. In addition, pursuant to Rule 416 under the Securities Act, the shares being registered hereunder include
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THE INFORMATION IN THIS PROSPECTUS IS NOT COMPLETE AND MAY BE CHANGED. WE MAY NOT SELL THESE SECURITIES UNTIL THE REGISTRATION
STATEMENT FILED WITH THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION IS EFFECTIVE. THIS PROSPECTUS IS NOT AN OFFER TO SELL THESE
SECURITIES AND IS NOT SOLICITING AN OFFER TO BUY THESE SECURITIES IN ANY JURISDICTION WHERE THE OFFER OR SALE IS NOT PERMITTED.
SUBJECT TO COMPLETION, DATED JUNE 12, 2018
PROSPECTUS

UNISYS CORPORATION
DEBT SECURITIES
COMMON STOCK
PREFERRED STOCK
WARRANTS
STOCK PURCHASE CONTRACTS
We may offer and sell debt securities, shares of common stock or shares of preferred stock, warrants and stock purchase contracts. These securities may
be offered and sold from time to time in amounts, at prices and on terms to be determined at the time of offering.
We will provide the specific terms of the securities in supplements to this prospectus to the extent those terms are not described in this prospectus or are
different from the terms described in this prospectus. The prospectus supplements may also add to, update or change information contained in this
prospectus. In addition, we may supplement, update or change any of the information contained in this prospectus by incorporating information by
reference in this prospectus. You should read this prospectus, the related supplements and any incorporated documents carefully before you invest.
This prospectus is not an offer to sell these securities and it is not soliciting an offer to buy these securities in any state where the offer or sale is not
permitted.
We may offer these securities directly to investors, through agents, underwriters or dealers, or through a combination of these methods, on a continued
or delayed basis. The applicable prospectus supplement will provide the terms of the plan of distribution relating to the series of securities. If any
agents, dealers or underwriters are involved in the sale of any securities, the applicable prospectus supplement will set forth their names and any
applicable commissions or discounts. Any net proceeds from the sale of securities will also be set forth in the applicable prospectus supplement.
Our common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “UIS.”
Before you invest, you should read this prospectus, any prospectus supplement, as well as the risks described in the documents incorporated by
reference.

You should consider carefully the risk factors beginning on page 7 of this prospectus before you invest in any of our
securities.
Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved of these securities or passed
upon the adequacy or accuracy of this prospectus. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

This prospectus is dated

, 2018
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ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS
This prospectus is part of a registration statement that we filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, or SEC, using a shelf registration
process. Under this shelf registration process, we may sell any of the securities described in this prospectus in one or more offerings. This prospectus
provides you with a general description of the securities we may offer. Each time we sell securities, we will provide a prospectus supplement that will
contain specific information about the terms of that offering. We may also authorize one or more free writing prospectuses to be provided to you that
may contain material information relating to these offerings and securities. The prospectus supplement may also add, update or change information
contained in this prospectus or the documents incorporated herein by reference.
You should rely only on the information contained or incorporated by reference in this prospectus, any applicable prospectus supplement and any
related free writing prospectus. We have not authorized anyone to provide you with different information. We are not making offers to sell the
securities in any jurisdiction where an offer or solicitation is not permitted. The information in this prospectus is accurate only as of the date on the
front cover. You should not assume that the information contained in this prospectus is accurate as of any other date. Before purchasing any securities,
you should carefully read both this prospectus and the accompanying prospectus supplement and any free writing prospectus prepared by or on behalf
of us, together with the additional information described under the heading “Where You Can Find More Information; Incorporation of Certain
Documents by Reference.”
When used in this prospectus, the terms “Unisys,” “we,” “our” and “us” refer to Unisys Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries, unless otherwise
specified or the context otherwise requires.

WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION; INCORPORATION OF CERTAIN DOCUMENTS BY REFERENCE
We file annual, quarterly and current reports, proxy statements and other information with the SEC. Our SEC filings are available over the Internet at
the SEC’s web site at www.sec.gov. You may also read and copy any document we file with the SEC at their Public Reference Room located at 100 F
Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. You may obtain information on the operation of the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC0330 for more information. We maintain a web site at www.unisys.com. The information on our web site is not incorporated by reference in this
prospectus or any prospectus supplement and you should not consider it a part of this prospectus or any accompanying prospectus supplement.
You may also read and copy reports and other information we file at the office of the New York Stock Exchange, 20 Broad Street, New York, New York
10005.
The SEC allows us to “incorporate by reference” the information we file with them, which means that we can disclose important information to you by
referring you to separate documents. The information incorporated by reference is considered to be part of this prospectus and any accompanying
prospectus supplement, and later information filed with the SEC will update and supersede this information. We incorporate by reference the
documents listed below that we have previously filed with the SEC (other than information deemed furnished and not filed in accordance with SEC
rules, including information furnished under Items 2.02 and 7.01 of Form 8-K and certain exhibits furnished pursuant to Item 9.01 of Form 8-K):
1.

Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2017 (including information specifically incorporated by reference into the
Annual Report on Form 10-K from our Definitive Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A for the 2018 Annual Meeting of Stockholders);

2.

Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2018;

3.

Current Reports on Form 8-K filed on February 28, 2018, March 14, 2018 and April 30, 2018; and

4.

The description of our common stock contained in the registration statement of Burroughs Corporation on Form 8-B filed on May 29,
1984, as amended on Form 8 filed on May 7, 1991.

Recent accounting pronouncements and accounting changes
Effective January 1, 2018, the company adopted ASU No. 2017-07 Compensation - Retirement Benefits (Topic 715): Improving the Presentation of Net
Periodic Pension Cost and Net Periodic Postretirement Benefit Cost issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) which requires
employers to present the service cost component of net periodic benefit cost in the same income statement line item(s) as other employee compensation
costs arising from services rendered during the period. The other components of net periodic benefit cost will be presented separately from the line
items that include service cost and outside the subtotal of operating income. ASU No. 2017-07 allows a practical expedient that permits an entity to
use amounts disclosed in its pension and
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other postretirement benefit plan note for the prior comparative periods as the estimation basis for applying the retrospective presentation
requirements. The new guidance will be applied on a retrospective basis, using the practical expedient, whereby prior-period financial statements will
be adjusted to reflect the adoption of the new guidance, as required by the FASB. Amounts that will be reclassified in the Consolidated Statements of
Income for the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

(In Millions)

Operating income (loss)
Other income (expense), net

December 31, 2017
As Stated
As Revised

December 31, 2016
As Stated
As Revised

December 31, 2015
As Stated
As Revised

$

$ 47.6
0.3

($ 55.1)
8.2

4.6
(23.9)

$

97.1
(116.4)

$

129.2
(81.3)

$

54.3
(101.2)

Adoption of this new accounting standard had no impact on the company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets, Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive
Income or Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (other than reclassifications within net cash provided by operating activities).
All documents filed by us pursuant to Sections 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or the Exchange Act, after
the date of this prospectus and any accompanying prospectus supplement and before the termination of the offering shall also be deemed to be
incorporated herein by reference. We are not, however, incorporating by reference any documents or portions thereof, whether specifically listed above
or filed in the future, that are not deemed “filed” with the SEC, including our compensation committee report and performance graph or any
information furnished pursuant to Items 2.02 or 7.01 of Form 8-K or certain exhibits furnished pursuant to Item 9.01 of Form 8-K.
You may request a copy of these filings, at no cost, by writing or telephoning us at the following address:
Unisys Corporation
801 Lakeview Drive, Suite 100
Blue Bell, Pennsylvania 19422
Attention: Investor Relations
(215) 986-6999
-2-
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SPECIAL NOTE ON FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
This prospectus and any accompanying prospectus supplement contain and incorporate by reference statements that do not directly or exclusively
relate to historical facts. These types of statements are forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Section 27A of the Securities Act and
Section 21E of the Exchange Act. Forward-looking statements provide current expectations of future events and include any statement that does not
directly relate to any historical or current fact. Words such as “anticipates,” “believes,” “expects,” “intends,” “plans,” “projects” and similar
expressions may identify such forward-looking statements. All forward-looking statements rely on assumptions and are subject to risks, uncertainties
and other factors that could cause our actual results to differ materially from expectations.
Factors that could affect future results include, but are not limited to, the following:
•

our ability to improve revenue and margins in our Services business;

•

our ability to maintain our installed base and sell new solutions in our Technology business;

•

our ability to effectively anticipate and respond to volatility and rapid technological innovation in our industry;

•

our ability to retain significant clients;

•

the potential adverse effects of aggressive competition in the information services and technology marketplace;

•

cybersecurity breaches could result in significant costs and could harm our business and reputation;

•

our significant pension obligations and required cash contributions and requirements to make additional significant cash contributions to
our defined benefit pension plans;

•

our ability to attract, motivate and retain experienced and knowledgeable personnel in key positions;

•

the risks of doing business internationally when a significant portion of our revenue is derived from international operations;

•

our contracts may not be as profitable as expected or provide the expected level of revenues;

•

our ability to access financing markets;

•

contracts with U.S. governmental agencies may subject us to audits, criminal penalties, sanctions and other expenses and fines;

•

a significant disruption in our IT systems could adversely affect our business and reputation;

•

we may face damage to our reputation or legal liability if our clients are not satisfied with our services or products;

•

the performance and capabilities of third parties with whom we have commercial relationships;

•

an involuntary termination of the company’s U.S. qualified defined benefit pension plan;

•

the potential for intellectual property infringement claims to be asserted against us or our clients;

•

the business and financial risk in implementing future acquisitions or dispositions;
-3-
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•

the adverse effects of global economic conditions, acts of war, terrorism or natural disasters; and

•

the possibility that pending litigation could affect our results of operations or cash flow.

Any forward-looking statement speaks only as of the date on which that statement is made. We undertake no obligation to update any forward-looking
statement to reflect events or circumstances that occur after the date on which the statement is made.
-4-
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ABOUT UNISYS
Unisys Corporation is a global information technology (“IT”) company that builds high-performance, security-centric solutions for clients across the
Government, Financial Services and Commercial markets. Unisys offerings include security software and services; digital transformation and
workplace services; industry applications and services; and innovative software operating environments for high-intensity enterprise computing.
We employ approximately 20,000 employees serving clients around the world.
We operate in two business segments—Services and Technology. Financial information concerning the two segments can be found in Note 14,
“Segment information”, of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements appearing in our annual report to stockholders for the year ended
December 31, 2017, and such information is incorporated herein by reference.
Principal Products and Services
We deliver high-performance, security-centric, leveraged services across industries, industry-specific application products and technology solutions
worldwide to our primary target markets: government (the U.S. federal government and other public sector organizations around the world),
commercial (e.g., travel and transportation and life sciences and healthcare) and financial services (e.g., commercial and retail banking).
Our solutions are designed to build better outcomes - securely - for our clients, enabling them to:
•

Transform core business processes to compete more effectively in their markets;

•

Improve user engagement for customers and workers, streamline operations and enhance go-to-market efforts;

•

Optimize IT infrastructure to meet digital-business requirements;

•

Simplify management of IT infrastructure and service delivery; and

•

Enhance enterprise security.

Within Services, our principal solutions include cloud and infrastructure services, application services and business process outsourcing services.
•

In cloud and infrastructure services, we help clients apply cloud and as-a-service delivery models to capitalize on business opportunities,
make their end users more productive and manage and secure their IT infrastructure and operations more economically.

•

In application services, we help clients transform their business processes by developing and managing new leading-edge applications for
select industries, offering advanced data analytics and modernizing existing enterprise applications.

•

In business process outsourcing services, we assume management of critical processes and functions for clients in target industries, helping
them improve performance and reduce costs.

In Technology, we design and develop software and offer hardware and other related products to help clients reduce costs, improve security and
flexibility and improve the efficiency of their data-center environments. As a pioneer in large-scale computing, we offer deep experience and rich
technological capabilities in transaction-intensive, mission-critical environments. We provide a range of data-center, infrastructure management and
cloud computing offerings to help clients virtualize and automate their data-center environments.
-5-

Table of Contents

Our industry application products include solutions that allow law enforcement agencies to share critical investigative intelligence, integrated child
support case management tools, and solutions that allow travel and transportation companies to manage freight and distribution as well as leverage
predictive analytics. Our solutions also provide life sciences and healthcare companies with the ability to manage medical devices and enhanced
visibility over the pharmaceutical supply chain. We also provide financial solutions to deliver secure, omnichannel banking.
Our Technology products include:
•

Unisys ClearPath Forward ®, a secure, scalable, hardware-independent software operating environment for high-volume enterprise
computing capable of delivering Unisys security across multiple hardware platforms. In 2016, Unisys began offering hardware-independent
versions of the ClearPath operating environment, providing a tested, integrated stack of software products that can run on an Intel x86
server of the client’s choice.

•

Unisys Stealth ® security software, which enables trusted identities to access micro-segmented critical assets and safely communicate
through secure, encrypted channels. Stealth™ establishes irrefutable user authentication, prevents lateral attacker movement and reduces
data center, mobile and cloud attack surfaces. Stealth also reduces the cost and complexity of securing information and operation
technology as well as industrial control systems, allowing organizations to meet compliance and security mandates.

We market our services and products primarily through a direct sales force. Complementing our direct sales force, we make use of a select group of
resellers and alliance partners to market our services and product portfolio. In certain foreign countries, we market primarily through distributors.
Our principal executive offices are located at 801 Lakeview Drive, Suite 100, Blue Bell, Pennsylvania 19422. Our telephone number is (215)
986-4011.
-6-
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RISK FACTORS
Investing in our securities involves risk. Prior to making a decision about investing in our securities, you should carefully consider the risk factors
contained in our most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K and our subsequent Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, which are incorporated by reference
herein, and the other information contained in this prospectus, as updated by our subsequent filings under the Exchange Act, and the risk factors and
other information contained in the applicable prospectus supplement or any free writing prospectus. The risks and uncertainties we have described are
not the only risks that we face. Additional risks and uncertainties not presently known to us or that we currently deem immaterial may also affect our
operations. These risks, both known or unknown, could materially affect our business, results of operations or financial condition and cause the value
of our securities to decline. You could lose all or part of your investment.
-7-
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USE OF PROCEEDS
Unless we indicate otherwise in a prospectus supplement, we plan to use the net proceeds from the sale of the securities for general corporate purposes,
to reduce or refinance indebtedness and to make acquisitions or engage in other business opportunities.
-8-
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RATIOS OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES AND EARNINGS
TO COMBINED FIXED CHARGES AND PREFERRED STOCK DIVIDENDS
The ratios of earnings to fixed charges and earnings to combined fixed charges and preferred stock dividends presented below should be read together
with our consolidated financial statements and related notes and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations” contained in our most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K and our subsequent Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q and any other documents
filed under the Exchange Act that are incorporated by reference herein. The ratios of earnings to fixed charges and earnings to combined fixed charges
and preferred stock dividends for each of our last five fiscal years appear below. We computed the ratio of earnings to fixed charges by dividing
earnings (loss) by fixed charges. We computed the ratio of earnings to combined fixed charges and preferred stock dividends by dividing earnings
(loss) by the sum of fixed charges and preferred stock dividends. Earnings (loss) consist of income (loss) from continuing operations before income
taxes, plus amortization of capitalized interest and fixed charges, less interest capitalized during the period. Fixed charges consist of interest expense
on all indebtedness, interest capitalized during the period, amortization of debt issuance expense and the portion of rental expense representative of
interest. Preferred stock dividends consist of dividends paid with respect to our 6.25% Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock, Series A, none of which
remains outstanding.
The following table sets forth our ratios of earnings to fixed charges and earnings to combined fixed charges and preferred stock dividends for each of
the periods shown:
3 Months Ended
March 31
2018

Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges
Ratio of Earnings to Combined Fixed Charges and Preferred Stock Dividends

3.71
3.71

2017

*
N/A

Year Ended December 31,
2016
2015
2014

1.36
1.36

*
N/A

4.42
4.16

2013

6.13
4.46

* Earnings for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2015 were inadequate to cover fixed charges by $73.1 million and $58.2 million, respectively.
The foregoing information will be updated by the information relating to our Ratios of Earnings to Fixed Charges and Earnings to Combined Fixed
Charges and Preferred Stock Dividends contained in our periodic reports filed with the SEC, which will be incorporated by reference in this prospectus
at the time they are filed with the SEC. See “Where You Can Find More Information; Incorporation of Certain Documents by Reference.”
-9-
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DESCRIPTION OF DEBT SECURITIES
This section describes the general terms and provisions of our debt securities. You should refer to the applicable indenture and the applicable
prospectus supplement and any documents incorporated herein or therein by reference for more specific information and the specific terms of a
particular offering.
General
Our debt securities will be either senior debt securities or subordinated debt securities. The senior debt securities, if unsecured, will rank equally with
all of our existing and future unsecured and unsubordinated indebtedness. The subordinated debt securities will rank junior to all of our existing and
future senior indebtedness in right of payment.
The senior debt securities will be issued under a senior indenture between us and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association or another trustee chosen by
us, and the subordinated debt securities will be issued under a subordinated indenture between us and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association or
another trustee chosen by us, in each case as may be supplemented by a supplemental indenture relating to the specific terms of the debt securities
offered. We have filed copies of both indentures as exhibits to the registration statement of which this prospectus is a part.
The indentures do not limit the amount of debt securities that we may issue and permit us to issue securities from time to time in one or more series. All
debt securities of one series need not be issued at the same time, and, unless otherwise provided, any series may be reopened, without the consent of the
holders of the debt securities of that series, for issuances of additional debt securities of that series. We may issue our debt securities separately or upon
conversion of or in exchange for our preferred stock or other debt securities. The debt securities will be our direct obligations. They may bear interest at
a fixed or floating rate or they may not bear interest. We may issue debt securities at, above or below their stated principal amount, as described more
fully in the applicable prospectus supplement.
The applicable prospectus supplement will describe the following terms of any series of debt securities that we may offer:
•

the title of the debt securities;

•

whether they are senior or subordinated;

•

the total amount of the debt securities authorized and the amount outstanding, if any;

•

any limit on the aggregate principal amount of the debt securities offered by that prospectus supplement;

•

whether the debt securities will be guaranteed and the identity of the guarantors, if applicable;

•

when the principal of the debt securities will mature;

•

the interest rate, if any, or the method for determining it, including any procedures to determine, vary or reset the interest rate;

•

when interest, if any, will be payable, as well as the record dates for determining to whom we will pay interest;

•

where the principal of, and premium and interest if any on, the debt securities will be paid;

•

the percentage of the principal amount at which such debt securities will be offered;

•

redemption, call, repurchase or sinking fund provisions, if any;
-10-
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•

whether the debt securities will be issued in global or certificated form and, in the case of global securities, the name of the depositary, if
any;

•

if we are going to make payments to the holder in a foreign currency or currencies, the currency or currencies and manner of conversion
from U.S. dollars;

•

any index we may use to determine the amount of payment of principal of, and premium and interest, if any, on, the debt securities;

•

whether the debt securities are convertible into or exchangeable for any other securities and the terms and conditions upon which a
conversion or exchange may occur;

•

any additions, deletions or changes to events of default or covenants provided in the applicable indenture;

•

any other terms of the debt securities that vary from the terms in the applicable indenture;

•

whether the debt securities will be secured or unsecured and the terms and collateral of any secured debt securities;

•

any material U.S. federal income tax considerations; and

•

any other information we think is important with respect to the terms and other provisions of the securities.

Denominations, Registration and Transfer
We will issue debt securities as registered securities (without coupons) either in certificated form or in the form of one or more global securities. We will
issue book-entry debt securities as registered global securities. Each global security will be issued in the denomination of the aggregate principal
amount of the securities that it represents. Unless otherwise stated in the applicable prospectus, we will issue the debt securities in denominations of
$2,000 and integral multiples of $1,000 in excess thereof.
A holder may exchange certificated debt securities for other debt securities of the same series in a like aggregate principal amount but in different
authorized denominations. Whenever any such debt securities are surrendered for exchange, we will execute, and the trustee will authenticate and
deliver, the debt securities that the holder making the exchange is entitled to receive.
A holder may present debt securities in certificated form for registration of transfer (with the form of transfer printed on the security duly executed) at
the office of the security registrar that we designate for such purpose. Unless we state otherwise in the applicable prospectus supplement, the security
registrar will be the trustee we appointed under the indenture for the applicable debt securities. There will be no service charge to register the transfer,
but the holder is responsible for paying any taxes and other governmental charges. Any transfer or exchange is subject to the security registrar being
satisfied with the documents of title and identity of the person making the request.
For a discussion of restrictions on the exchange, registration and transfer of global securities, see the section below entitled “– Global Securities”.
Payment and Paying Agents
Unless otherwise indicated in an applicable prospectus supplement, we will pay the principal of, and premium and interest, if any, on, debt securities to
a paying agent, whom we will designate from time to time. However, at our option we may pay any interest (1) by check mailed to each holder at such
holder’s address appearing in the security register or (2) by wire transfer to an account maintained by each holder. Unless otherwise stated in the
applicable prospectus supplement, we will pay interest to each holder on the applicable payment date if the debt security is registered in such holder’s
name at the close of business on the regular record date for that interest payment.
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Unless otherwise indicated in an applicable prospectus supplement, the trustee under the applicable indenture will act as our sole paying agent through
its principal office. We may at any time designate additional paying agents or rescind the designation of any paying agent or approve a change in the
office through which any paying agent acts, except that we will be required to maintain a paying agent in each place of payment for each series. If, after
two years, moneys that we paid to a paying agent remain unclaimed, the paying agent will remit the moneys to us, together with any interest, and each
holder may look only to us for payment (or to the applicable state if we are required to escheat the moneys).
Global Securities
We will deposit any global securities with a depositary or its nominee identified in the applicable prospectus supplement. While the applicable
prospectus supplement will describe the specific terms of the depositary arrangement, we expect the following general provisions to apply to our
depositary arrangements:
Global securities will be registered in the name of the depositary or its nominee. Upon the issuance of a global security, the depositary or nominee will
credit, on its book-entry registration and transfer system, the principal amounts of the debt securities represented by the global security to the accounts
of institutions that have accounts with the depositary or nominee. If we are offering and selling the debt securities directly, we will designate the
accounts to be credited; otherwise, our underwriter or agent will do so. Ownership of beneficial interests in a global security will be limited to
participating institutions or their clients. The depositary or its nominee will keep records of the ownership and transfer of beneficial interests in a
global security by participating institutions. Participating institutions will keep records of the ownership and transfer of beneficial interests by their
clients. The laws of some jurisdictions may require that purchasers of securities receive them in certificated form. This may limit the ability to transfer
beneficial interests in a global security.
So long as the depositary or its nominee is the registered owner of a global security, it will be considered the sole owner or holder of the debt securities
represented by the global security for all purposes under the applicable indenture. Except as set forth below, owners of beneficial interests in the global
securities will not be entitled to have debt securities represented by the global security registered in their names, will not receive or be entitled to
receive debt securities in certificated form and will not be considered the owners or holders thereof under the applicable indenture. Accordingly, if a
holder owns a beneficial interest in a global security, the holder must rely on the depositary and, if applicable, the participating institution of which
that holder is a client to exercise the rights of that holder under the applicable indenture.
The depositary may grant proxies and otherwise authorize participating institutions to take any action that a holder is entitled to take under the
indentures. We understand that, according to existing industry practices, if we request any action of holders, or any owner of a beneficial interest in a
global security wishes to give any notice or take any action, the depositary would authorize the participating institutions to give the notice or take the
action, and the participating institutions would in turn authorize their clients to give the notice or take the action.
Generally, we will make payments on debt securities represented by a global security directly to the depositary or its nominee. It is our understanding
that the depositary will then credit the accounts of participating institutions, which will then distribute funds to their clients. We also expect that
payments by participating institutions to their clients will be governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as is now the case with
securities held for the accounts of clients registered in “street names,” and will be the responsibility of the participating institutions. Neither we nor the
trustees, nor our respective agents, will have any responsibility, or bear any liability, for any aspects of the records relating to or payments made on
account of beneficial interests in a global security, or for maintaining, supervising or reviewing records relating to beneficial interests.
Generally, a global security may be exchanged for certificated debt securities only in the following instances:
•

the depositary notifies us that it is unwilling or unable to continue as depositary, or it ceases to be a registered clearing agency, if required
to be registered by law, and thereafter a successor is not appointed within 90 days; or
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•

we determine in our sole discretion that we will no longer have debt securities represented by global securities or that we will permit global
securities to be exchanged for certificated debt securities.

Consolidation, Merger, Sale or Lease of Assets
Each indenture provides that we, without the consent of the holders of any of the outstanding debt securities, may consolidate with or merge into, or
transfer or lease our assets substantially as an entirety to, any corporation organized under the laws of any domestic jurisdiction, provided that:
•

the successor corporation assumes our obligations under the indenture and the debt securities issued thereunder;

•

after giving effect to the transaction, no event of default and no event which, after notice or lapse of time, would become an event of default
shall have occurred and be continuing; and

•

any other conditions that may be specified with respect to a particular series of debt securities are met.

Events of Default
Except as may be provided in a prospectus supplement, any of the following events will constitute an event of default for a series of debt securities
under an indenture:
•

failure to pay principal of or any premium on any debt security of that series when due;

•

failure to pay any interest on any debt security of that series when due, continued for 30 days;

•

failure to deposit any sinking fund payment in respect of any debt security of that series when due;

•

failure to perform any other covenant of Unisys in the applicable indenture (other than a covenant included in the indenture solely for the
benefit of a series of debt securities other than that series), continued for 60 days after written notice as provided in the indenture;

•

certain events of bankruptcy, insolvency or reorganization; and

•

any other event of default provided with respect to debt securities of that series.

If there is an event of default with respect to a series of our debt securities, which continues for the requisite amount of time, either the trustee or holders
of at least 25% in aggregate principal amount of that series may declare the principal amount of all the debt securities of that series to be due and
payable immediately. If we issued the securities with original issue discount, less than the stated principal amount may become payable. At any time
after a declaration of acceleration with respect to debt securities of any series has been made, but before a judgment or decree based on acceleration has
been obtained, the holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of outstanding debt securities of that series may, under certain circumstances,
rescind and annul the acceleration.
Each of the indentures provides that, subject to the trustee’s duty to act with the required standard of care during a default, the applicable trustee will
be under no obligation to exercise any of its rights or powers under the indenture at the request or direction of any of the holders, unless the holders
have offered indemnity satisfactory to it to the applicable trustee. Subject to these provisions for the indemnification of the trustee, the holders of a
majority in aggregate principal amount of the outstanding debt securities of any series will have the right to direct the time, method and place of
conducting any proceeding for any remedy available to the trustee, or exercising any trust or power conferred on the trustee, with respect to the debt
securities of that series.
We are required to furnish the trustees annually with a statement as to our compliance with our obligations under the indentures and as to any defaults.
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Modification and Waiver
We and the trustees may enter into supplemental indentures without the consent of any holders of the debt securities for the purposes, among other
things, of expanding our covenants for the benefit of the holders of any series of debt securities, adding additional events of default for the benefit of
the holders of any series of debt securities, adding guarantees, adding security, establishing the form or terms of debt securities or curing ambiguities or
inconsistencies.
We may make other modifications and amendments to the indentures with the consent of the holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the
outstanding debt securities of each series affected by the modification or amendment. However, the consent of all of the holders of our debt securities
that are affected by a modification or amendment is required:
•

to change the stated maturity of the principal of, or any installment of principal or interest on, any debt security;

•

to reduce the principal amount of, or any premium or interest on, any debt security;

•

to reduce the amount of principal of debt securities issued with original issue discount payable upon acceleration of the maturity thereof;

•

to change the currency of payment of principal of, or any premium or interest on, any debt security;

•

to impair the right to institute suit for the enforcement of any payment on or with respect to any debt security; or

•

to reduce the percentage in principal amount of outstanding debt securities of any series, the consent of whose holders is required for
modification or amendment of the indenture.

The holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the outstanding debt securities of each series may, on behalf of all holders of debt securities
of that series, waive any past default under the applicable indenture with respect to debt securities of that series, except a default in the payment of the
principal of, or premium or interest, if any, on, any of the debt securities of that series or in respect of a covenant or provision of the indenture that
cannot, under the terms of the indenture, be modified or amended without the consent of the holders of each outstanding debt security affected thereby.
Defeasance
Except as specified with respect to debt securities of a particular series, we may discharge our obligations in respect of the debt securities of any series
(including, in the case of the senior debt securities, our obligations to abide by certain covenants) by depositing with the trustee, in trust, money or
government obligations which, through the payment of interest, principal and premium, if any, in accordance with their terms, will provide money in
an amount sufficient, in the opinion of a nationally recognized firm of independent public accountants, to pay all the interest, principal and premium,
if any, on the debt securities of that series on the dates those payments are due in accordance with the terms of the series. We must also, among other
things, deliver to the applicable trustee an opinion of counsel to the effect that (1) the deposit and related defeasance would not cause the holders of
the debt securities of the series to recognize income, gain or loss for U.S. income tax purposes and (2) the holders would be subject to federal income
tax on the same amounts, in the same manner and at the same times as would have been the case if the deposit and related defeasance had not occurred.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, we may not be discharged from certain obligations to register the transfer or exchange of debt securities of a series,
convert debt securities of a series, replace stolen, lost or mutilated debt securities of a series, maintain paying agencies or hold moneys for payment in
trust.
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Conversion Rights
The applicable prospectus supplement will describe the terms on which holders of our debt securities of a series may convert the securities into our
preferred stock or our common stock. Conversion may be mandatory, at the option of the holder, or at our option, as described in the applicable
prospectus supplement.
Subordination Provisions
Our subordinated debt securities will be subordinated in right of payment, to the extent provided in the subordinated indenture or as described in an
applicable prospectus supplement, to the prior payment in full of our senior indebtedness. If we distribute our assets to creditors upon liquidation,
dissolution, reorganization, insolvency, bankruptcy or under similar circumstances, holders of our senior debt will be entitled to be paid in full before
any payments will be made on our subordinated debt securities. In addition, unless otherwise provided in an applicable prospectus supplement, we will
not make any payment of principal, premium or interest with respect to subordinated debt securities or on account of their purchase, redemption or
other acquisition if any default in the payment of principal, premium or interest on any senior indebtedness occurs and continues beyond any
applicable grace period.
If the subordinated trustee or the holders of our subordinated debt securities receive a payment that should not have been paid because of the existence
of any of the events described above, they will be required to turn over the funds to the holders of our senior debt. In addition, subject to the payment
in full of all senior debt, holders of subordinated debt securities will be subrogated to the rights of the holders of that senior debt with respect to the
right to receive payments or distributions of our cash, property or securities applicable to that senior debt until all amounts owing on the subordinated
debt securities are paid in full.
By reason of this subordination, in the event of a distribution of assets upon insolvency, certain of our creditors may recover more, ratably, than holders
of the subordinated debt securities.
The subordinated indenture does not place any limits on the amount of other indebtedness, including senior indebtedness, that we may issue.
“Senior indebtedness” with respect to any series of subordinated debt securities will have the meaning specified in the applicable prospectus
supplement for that series. The prospectus supplement, or the information incorporated by reference therein, will also set forth the approximate amount
of senior indebtedness outstanding as of a recent date.
Notices
Notices will be mailed to holders of debt securities at their addresses as they appear in the security register.
Governing Law
The indentures and the debt securities will be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of the State of New York.
Concerning the Trustee
Wells Fargo Bank, National Association and its affiliates have normal banking relationships with us and it participates as a lender in our revolving
credit facility. Wells Fargo Bank, National Association and its affiliates may from time to time in the future provide banking and other services to us in
the ordinary course of their business.
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DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STOCK
This section describes the general terms of our common stock, our preferred stock and certain provisions of the Delaware General Corporation Law. For
more detailed information, you should refer to our Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as amended, Certificate of Designations, Preferences and
Rights and By-laws, copies of which have been filed with the SEC and incorporated by reference into this prospectus, and the relevant provisions of
the Delaware General Corporation Law.
General
Our authorized capital stock consists of:
•

150,000,000 shares of common stock, par value $.01 per share; and

•

40,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par value $1 per share, including 1,500,000 shares that have been designated as junior participating
preferred stock.

As of March 31, 2018, there were 50,964,531 shares of common stock and no shares of preferred stock outstanding.
Common Stock
Subject to the rights of any holders of shares of preferred stock and except as otherwise may be required by applicable law, holders of shares of common
stock:
•

are entitled to receive dividends when and as declared by the board of directors from funds legally available for that purpose;

•

have the exclusive right to vote on all matters on which stockholders generally are entitled to vote, including the election of directors, and
are entitled to one vote per share; and

•

are entitled, upon any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of Unisys, to a pro rata distribution of the assets and funds available for
distribution to stockholders.

Holders of shares of common stock do not have preemptive rights to subscribe for additional shares of common stock or securities convertible into
shares of common stock. Our common stock is currently listed on the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”) under the symbol “UIS”. Computershare
Inc. is the transfer agent for our common stock.
We have not declared or paid any cash dividends on our common stock since 1990 and do not anticipate declaring or paying dividends on the
common stock in the foreseeable future. Certain of our debt instruments and credit facilities may restrict our ability to pay dividends.
All outstanding shares of our common stock are fully paid and nonassessable. Any shares of common stock that we issue will be fully paid and
nonassessable.
Preferred Stock
Our Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as amended, authorizes our board of directors to provide for the issuance of shares of our preferred stock in
multiple series without the approval of stockholders. With respect to each series of preferred stock we may offer, our board of directors has the
authority, subject to applicable law, to fix the following terms:
•

the designation of the series;

•

the number of shares within the series;
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•

the ranking of that series;

•

whether dividends are cumulative and, if cumulative, the dates from which dividends are cumulative;

•

the dividend rate, any conditions upon which dividends are payable, and the dates of payment of dividends;

•

whether the shares are redeemable, the redemption price and the terms of redemption;

•

the amount payable for each share if Unisys is dissolved or liquidated;

•

whether the shares are convertible or exchangeable, the price or rate of conversion or exchange, and the applicable terms and conditions;

•

any restrictions on issuance of shares in the same series or any other series;

•

the voting rights for the shares of that series; and

•

any other rights, preferences or limitations of that series.

Holders of any shares of preferred stock will have no preemptive rights with respect to such shares unless specified in the applicable prospectus
supplement. In addition, the rights of holders of any shares of preferred stock with respect to such shares will be subordinate to the rights of our general
creditors. Each new series of preferred stock will rank prior to our common stock regarding the distribution of dividends or disposition of other assets,
unless otherwise specified in the applicable prospectus supplement. If the preferred stock is convertible into our common stock, we will reserve the full
number of shares of our common stock issuable upon conversion of the preferred stock out of the total of our authorized but unissued shares of
common stock to permit the conversion of the preferred stock into shares of common stock. Any shares of preferred stock that we issue will be fully
paid and nonassessable.
If we offer preferred stock, the applicable prospectus supplement will describe the specific terms of the shares of preferred stock offered through that
prospectus supplement, restrictions on the repurchase or redemption of such shares, if any, as well as any general terms described in this section that
will not apply to those shares of preferred stock. In the applicable prospectus supplement, we will also discuss any material U.S. federal income tax
considerations applicable to the preferred stock. We will file a copy of the certificate of designations that contains the terms of each new series of
preferred stock with the SEC each time we issue a new series of preferred stock. Each certificate of designations will establish the number of shares
included in a designated series and fix the designation, powers, privileges, preferences and rights of the shares of each series as well as any applicable
qualifications, limitations or restrictions. You should refer to the applicable certificate of designations as well as our Restated Certificate of
Incorporation, as amended, before deciding to buy shares of our preferred stock as described in the applicable prospectus supplement.
Junior Participating Preferred Stock
Our Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as amended, authorizes our board of directors to provide for the issuance of shares of our junior participating
preferred stock. The shares of junior participating preferred stock will be nonredeemable. Each share of junior participating preferred stock will have a
preferential quarterly dividend equal to the greater of (1) $15 per share or (2) 300 times the aggregate dividend declared per share of common stock. In
the event of liquidation, the holders of the shares of junior participating preferred stock will receive a preferred liquidation payment of $100 per share,
and will be entitled to receive an aggregate liquidation payment per share equal to 300 times the payment made per share of common stock. Each share
of the junior participating preferred stock will have 300 votes, voting together with the shares of common stock. In the event of any merger,
consolidation or other transaction in which shares of common stock are exchanged, each share of the junior participating preferred stock will be
entitled to receive 300 times the amount received per share of common stock. The junior participating preferred stock has customary antidilution
provisions to protect the dividend, liquidation and voting rights described above.
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Anti-Takeover Provisions
Delaware Law
Unisys is a Delaware corporation and subject to Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law. Generally, Section 203 prohibits a publicly
held Delaware corporation from engaging in a “business combination” with an “interested stockholder” for a period of three years after the time of the
transaction in which the person became an interested stockholder. The provision does not apply if:
•

prior to such time, either the business combination or such transaction is approved by the board of directors of the corporation;

•

upon consummation of the transaction that results in the stockholder becoming an interested stockholder, the interested stockholder owns
at least 85% of the outstanding voting stock; or

•

on or after such time, the business combination is approved by the board and by the affirmative vote of at least 66 2/3% of the outstanding
voting stock that is not owned by the interested stockholder.

A “business combination” includes mergers, asset sales and other transactions resulting in a financial benefit to the interested stockholder. An
“interested stockholder” is a person who, together with affiliates and associates, owns (or within three years, did own) 15% or more of the corporation’s
outstanding voting stock. The statute could have the effect of delaying, deferring or preventing a change in our control or reducing the price that some
investors might be willing to pay in the future for our common stock.
Corporate Documents
Our Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as amended, and By-laws also contain anti-takeover provisions that may have the effect of delaying,
deferring or preventing a future takeover or change in control unless the board approves it. These provisions may also make it more difficult to remove
the current board of directors.
•

Removal of Directors; Vacancies—Directors may be removed from office with or without cause by the affirmative vote of at least 80% of
the outstanding voting stock. Vacancies in the board of directors and newly created directorships are filled for the unexpired term only by
the vote of a majority of the remaining directors in office.

•

Special Meetings of Stockholders—Under the Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as amended, and By-laws, stockholders may not call a
special meeting of stockholders. Only the board of directors, by resolution adopted by a majority of the entire board, may call a special
meeting of stockholders.

•

Action by Written Consent—The Delaware General Corporation Law provides that, unless specifically prohibited by the certificate of
incorporation, any action required or permitted to be taken by stockholders of a corporation may be taken without a meeting if a written
consent setting forth the action to be taken is signed by the holders of outstanding shares of capital stock having the requisite number of
votes that would be necessary to authorize or take the action at a meeting of stockholders. Our Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as
amended, requires that stockholder action be taken at a meeting of stockholders and prohibits stockholder action by written consent.

•

Business Combinations—The Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as amended, provides that mergers, consolidations, sales or other
transfers of assets of, issuances or reclassifications of securities of, or adoptions of plans of liquidation by Unisys (individually, a “corporate
transaction”) must be approved by 80% or more of the voting stock when the action involves a person (a “20% stockholder”) who
beneficially owns more than 20% of the then outstanding shares of voting stock, unless minimum price, form of consideration and
procedural requirements (the “fair price provisions”) are satisfied or unless a majority of the directors not affiliated with the 20%
stockholder approve the corporate transaction.
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The affirmative vote of 80% or more of the then outstanding shares of voting stock is required to amend, alter or repeal the provisions of the Restated
Certificate of Incorporation, as amended, and By-laws discussed above.
The purpose of the provisions of the Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as amended, and By-laws relating to (1) the removal of directors and the
filling of vacancies; (2) the prohibition of stockholder action by written consent and (3) supermajority voting requirements for the repeal of these
provisions is to discourage many types of transactions that involve an actual or threatened change of control of Unisys. They are designed to make it
more difficult and time-consuming to change majority control of the board of directors and thus to reduce the vulnerability of Unisys to an unsolicited
takeover proposal that does not contemplate the acquisition of at least 80% of the voting stock or to an unsolicited proposal for the restructuring or
sale of all or part of the company.
These charter and by-law provisions may make more difficult or discourage a proxy contest, or the assumption of control, by a holder of a substantial
block of shares of common stock, or the removal of the incumbent board of directors, and could thus increase the likelihood that incumbent directors
will retain their positions. In addition, since the fair price provisions discussed above provide that corporate transactions involving Unisys and a 20%
stockholder may not be consummated without the approval of a majority of unaffiliated directors (unless the transaction meets specified criteria or is
approved by supermajority vote), these provisions could give incumbent management the power to prevent certain takeovers. The fair price provisions
may also discourage attempts to effect a “two-step” acquisition in which a third party purchases a controlling interest in cash and acquires the balance
of the voting stock for less desirable consideration. Under the provisions governing the removal of directors, the third party would not immediately
obtain the ability to control the board of directors through its first-step acquisition and, under the fair price provisions, having made the first-step
acquisition, the third party could not acquire the balance of the voting stock for a lower price without a supermajority vote or the approval of a
majority of the unaffiliated directors.
These provisions of the Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as amended, and By-laws help ensure that the board of directors, if confronted with an
unsolicited proposal from a third party that has acquired a block of shares of common stock, will have sufficient time to review the proposal and to
consider appropriate alternatives for Unisys stockholders.
These provisions are also intended to encourage persons seeking to acquire control of Unisys to initiate such an acquisition through arm’s-length
negotiations with the board of directors, who would then be in a position to negotiate a transaction that would treat all stockholders in substantially
the same manner. The provisions may have the effect of discouraging a third party from making an unsolicited tender offer or otherwise attempting to
obtain control of Unisys, even though such an attempt might be beneficial to the company and its stockholders. In addition, since the provisions are
designed to discourage accumulations of large blocks of shares of common stock by purchasers whose objective is to have those shares repurchased by
the company at a premium, the provisions could tend to reduce the temporary fluctuations in the market price of common stock caused by these
accumulations. Accordingly, Unisys stockholders could be deprived of the opportunity to sell their shares at a potentially higher market price.

DESCRIPTION OF WARRANTS
We may issue warrants for the purchase of our debt securities, preferred stock or common stock. We may issue warrants independently or together with
other securities. Each series of warrants will be issued under a separate warrant agreement to be entered into between us and a bank or trust company, as
warrant agent. The warrant agent will act solely as our agent in connection with the warrants and will not have any obligation or relationship of agency
or trust for or with any holders or beneficial owners of warrants. We will file a copy of the warrant agreement with the SEC in connection with any
offering of warrants.
We will describe the terms of any warrants we issue in a prospectus supplement. Those terms will include the following:
•

the title of the warrants;
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•

the offering price for the warrants, if any;

•

the aggregate number of the warrants;

•

the amount of securities that may be purchased upon exercise of a warrant and the exercise price;

•

the currency or currency units in which the offering price, if any, and the exercise price are payable;

•

a description of the securities purchasable upon exercise of the warrants;

•

if applicable, a description of the securities with which the warrants are issued and the number of warrants issued with each such security;

•

the dates on which the right to exercise the warrants will commence and expire;

•

if applicable, the minimum or maximum amount of warrants that may be exercised at any one time;

•

if applicable, the date on and after which the warrants and the related securities will be separately transferable;

•

information relating to book-entry procedures, if any;

•

anti-dilution provisions, if any;

•

redemption or call provisions, if any; and

•

any other information we think is important.

In the applicable prospectus supplement, we will also discuss any material U.S. federal income tax considerations applicable to the warrants.

DESCRIPTION OF STOCK PURCHASE CONTRACTS
We may issue stock purchase contracts obligating holders to purchase from us and obligating us to sell to the holders, a specified number of shares of
Unisys common stock or other securities at a future date or dates. The price per share and number of shares of the securities may be fixed at the time the
stock purchase contracts are issued or may be determined by reference to a specific formula set forth in the stock purchase contracts. The stock purchase
contracts may require holders to secure their obligations in a specified manner.
The applicable prospectus supplement and any documents incorporated by reference will describe the terms of any stock purchase contracts. The
description in the prospectus supplement will not necessarily be complete, and reference may be made to the stock purchase contracts, and, if
applicable, collateral arrangements and depositary arrangements relating to the stock purchase contracts. In the applicable prospectus supplement, we
will also discuss any material U.S. federal income tax considerations applicable to the stock purchase contracts.

PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION
We may sell the securities offered in the prospectus in any of, or any combination of, the following ways:
•

through underwriters or dealers;

•

directly to purchasers; or

•

through agents.
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We or any of our agents may directly solicit offers to purchase these securities. The applicable prospectus supplement will name any agent, who may be
deemed to be an underwriter as that term is defined in the Securities Act, involved in the offer or sale of the securities in respect of which this
prospectus is delivered, and will set forth any commissions payable by us to that agent. Unless otherwise indicated in the prospectus supplement, any
such agency will be acting in a best efforts basis for the period of its appointment (ordinarily five business days or less). Agents, dealers and
underwriters may be customers of, engage in transactions with, or perform services for us in the ordinary course of business. If we utilize an underwriter
or underwriters in the sale, we will execute an underwriting agreement with such underwriters at the time of sale to them and will set forth in the
applicable prospectus supplement the names of the underwriters and the terms of the transaction, including any underwriting discounts and other items
constituting underwriters’ compensation. Unless otherwise set forth in the prospectus supplement, the obligation of the underwriters to purchase these
securities will be subject to conditions. The underwriters will be obligated to purchase all of these securities if any are purchased. The underwriters will
use the prospectus supplement to make releases of the securities in respect of which this prospectus is delivered to the public.
Underwriters
The securities subject to the underwriting agreement will be acquired by the underwriters for their own account and may be resold by them from time to
time in one or more transactions, including negotiated transactions, at a fixed public offering price or at varying prices determined at the time of sale.
Underwriters may be deemed to have received compensation from us in the form of underwriting discounts or commissions and may also receive
commissions from the purchasers of these securities for whom they may act as agent. Underwriters may sell these securities to or through dealers. These
dealers may receive compensation in the form of discounts, concessions or commissions from the underwriters and/or commissions from the purchasers
for whom they may act as agent. Any initial public offering price and any discounts or concessions allowed or reallowed or paid to dealers may be
changed from time to time.
If we utilize a dealer in the sale of the securities in respect of which this prospectus is delivered, we will sell the securities to the dealer, as principal.
The dealer may then resell the securities to the public at varying prices to be determined by the dealer at the time of resale. The applicable prospectus
supplement will set forth the name of the dealer and the terms of the transaction.
Agents, underwriters, and dealers may be entitled under the relevant agreements to indemnification by us against certain liabilities, including
liabilities under the Securities Act, and to the contribution for payments the underwriters and dealers may be required to make.
The applicable prospectus supplement will set forth the place and time of delivery for the securities in respect of which this prospectus is delivered.

LEGAL MATTERS
Except as otherwise set forth in the applicable prospectus supplement, certain legal matters in connection with the securities will be passed upon for
Unisys by Pepper Hamilton LLP. If legal matters in connection with offerings made pursuant to this prospectus are passed upon by counsel to
underwriters, dealers or agents, such counsel will be named in the prospectus supplement related to such offering.

EXPERTS
The consolidated balance sheets of Unisys Corporation as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 and the related consolidated statements of income,
comprehensive income, deficit and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2017, the related financial statement
schedule and management’s assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2017 have been
incorporated by reference herein and in the registration statement in reliance upon the reports of KPMG LLP, independent registered public accounting
firm, incorporated by reference herein, and upon the authority of said firm as experts in accounting and auditing.
The audit report on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2017, expresses an opinion that Unisys
Corporation did not maintain effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2017 because of the effect of a material weakness
on the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria and contains an explanatory paragraph that states a material weakness related to ineffective
risk assessment procedures, insufficient trained personnel, and ineffective process level control activities over Technology revenue has been identified
and included in management’s assessment.
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PART II
INFORMATION NOT REQUIRED IN PROSPECTUS
Item 14.

Other Expenses of Issuance and Distribution.

The expenses relating to the registration of securities will be borne by the registrant. The following table sets forth an estimate of the expenses payable
in connection with the issuance and distribution of the securities being registered, other than underwriting discounts and commissions. All of the
expenses will be borne by us. The following expenses, with the exception of the Securities and Exchange Commission Registration Fee, are estimates:
Securities and Exchange Commission Registration Fee
Trustees’ and Transfer Agents’ Fees
Printing and Engraving Expenses
Rating Agency Fees
Accounting Fees and Expenses
Blue Sky Fees and Expenses
Legal Fees and Expenses
Miscellaneous Expenses
Total
Item 15.

$ 87,150
$ 50,000
$100,000
$250,000
$100,000
$ 25,000
$250,000
$ 50,000
$912,150

Indemnification of Directors and Officers.

Section 145 of the Delaware General Corporation Law (the “DGCL”) provides, among other things:
•

for permissive indemnification for expenses, judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred by
designated persons, including directors and officers of a corporation, in the event such persons are parties to litigation other than
stockholder derivative actions if certain conditions are met;

•

for permissive indemnification for expenses actually and reasonably incurred by designated persons, including directors and officers of a
corporation, in the event such persons are parties to stockholder derivative actions if certain conditions are met;
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•

for mandatory indemnification for expenses actually and reasonably incurred by designated persons, including directors and officers of a
corporation, in the event such persons are successful on the merits or otherwise in litigation covered by the two preceding bullet points;
and

•

that the indemnification provided for by Section 145 shall not be deemed exclusive of any other rights which may be provided under any
by-law, agreement, stockholder or disinterested director vote, or otherwise.

The Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as amended, of Unisys Corporation (the “Company”) provides that a director of the Company shall not be
personally liable to the Company or its stockholders for monetary damages for breach of fiduciary duty as a director except for liability (i) for any
breach of the director’s duty of loyalty to the Company or its stockholders, (ii) for acts or omissions not in good faith or which involve intentional
misconduct or a knowing violation of law, (iii) for paying a dividend or approving a stock repurchase in violation of Section 174 of the DGCL or
(iv) for any transaction from which the director derived an improper personal benefit.
The Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as amended, also provides that each person who was or is made a party to, or is involved in, any action, suit
or proceeding by reason of the fact that he or she is or was a director or officer of the Company (or was serving at the request of the Company as a
director, officer, employee or agent for another entity) shall be indemnified and held harmless by the Company, to the fullest extent authorized by the
DGCL, as in effect (or, to the extent indemnification is broadened, as it may be amended) against all expense, liability or loss reasonably incurred by
such person in connection therewith. The Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as amended, further provides that such rights to indemnification are
contract rights and shall include the right to be paid by the Company the expenses incurred in defending the proceedings specified above, in advance
of their final disposition, provided that, if the DGCL so requires, such payment shall only be made upon delivery to the Company by the indemnified
party of an undertaking to repay all amounts so advanced if it shall ultimately be determined that the person receiving such payment is not entitled to
be indemnified. Persons so indemnified may bring suit against the Company to recover unpaid amounts, and if the suit is successful, the Company
shall reimburse the indemnified party for the expense of bringing the suit. The Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as amended, provides that the
right to indemnification and to the advance payment of expenses shall not be exclusive of any other right which any person may have or acquire under
any statute, provision of the Company’s Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as amended, or By-Laws, or otherwise. By resolution effective
September 16, 1986, the Board of Directors extended the right to indemnification provided directors and officers by the Restated Certificate of
Incorporation, as amended, to employees of the Company. The Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as amended, also provides that the Company may
maintain insurance, at its expense, to protect itself and any of its directors, officers, employees or agents against any expense, liability or loss, whether
or not the Company would have the power to indemnify such person against such expense, liability or loss under the DGCL.
On April 28, 1988, at the Company’s 1988 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, the stockholders authorized the Company to enter into indemnification
agreements with its directors, and such indemnification agreements have been executed with each of the directors of the Company. The
indemnification agreements provide that the Company shall, except in certain situations specified below, indemnify a director against any expense,
liability or loss (including attorneys’ fees, judgments, fines, ERISA excise taxes or penalties and amounts paid in settlement) incurred by the director in
connection with any actual or threatened action, suit or proceeding (including derivative suits) in which the director may be involved as a party or
otherwise, by reason of the fact that the director is or was serving in one or more capacities as a director or officer of the Company or, at the request of
the Company, as a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust, employee benefit plan or other entity or
enterprise.
The indemnification agreements require indemnification except to the extent (i) payment for any liability is made under an insurance policy provided
by the Company, (ii) indemnification is provided by the Company under the Company’s Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as amended, or
By-Laws, the DGCL or otherwise than pursuant to the indemnification agreement, (iii) the liability is based upon or attributable to the director gaining
any personal pecuniary profit to which such director is not legally entitled or is determined to result from the director’s knowingly fraudulent,
dishonest or willful misconduct, (iv) the liability arises out of the violation of certain provisions of the Exchange Act, or (v) indemnification has been
determined not to be permitted by applicable law.
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The indemnification agreements further provide that, in the event of a Potential Change in Control (as defined therein), the Company shall cause to be
maintained any then-existing policies of directors’ and officers’ liability insurance for a period of six years from the date of a Change in Control (as
defined therein) with coverage at least comparable to and in the same amounts as that provided by such policies in effect immediately prior to such
Potential Change in Control. In the event of a Potential Change in Control, the indemnification agreements also provide for the establishment by the
Company of a trust, for the benefit of each director, upon the written request by the director. The trust shall be funded by the Company in amounts
sufficient to satisfy any and all liabilities reasonably anticipated at the time of such request, as agreed upon by the director and the Company.
The indemnification agreements also provide that no legal actions may be brought by or on behalf of the Company, or any affiliate of the Company,
against a director after the expiration of two years from the date of accrual of such cause of action, and that any claim or cause of action of the
Company or its affiliate shall be extinguished and deemed released unless asserted by the timely filing of a legal action within such two year period.
The directors and officers of the Company are insured against certain civil liabilities, including liabilities under federal securities laws, which might be
incurred by them in such capacity.
Item 16.

Exhibits.

See the attached Exhibit Index, which is incorporated herein by reference.
Item 17.

Undertakings.

The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes:
(1)

To file, during any period in which offers or sales are being made, a post-effective amendment to this registration statement:
(i)

To include any prospectus required by Section 10(a)(3) of the Securities Act;

(ii)

To reflect in the prospectus any facts or events arising after the effective date of the registration statement (or the most recent posteffective amendment thereof) which, individually or in the aggregate, represent a fundamental change in the information set forth in
the registration statement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any increase or decrease in volume of securities offered (if the total dollar
value of securities offered would not exceed that which was registered) and any deviation from the low or high end of the estimated
maximum offering range may be reflected in the form of prospectus filed with the SEC pursuant to Rule 424(b) if, in the aggregate,
the changes in volume and price represent no more than a 20% change in the maximum aggregate offering price set forth in the
“Calculation of Registration Fee” table in the effective registration statement; and

(iii)

To include any material information with respect to the plan of distribution not previously disclosed in the registration statement or
any material change to such information in the registration statement;

provided, however, that undertakings set forth in paragraphs (i), (ii) and (iii) above do not apply if the information required to be included in a posteffective amendment by those paragraphs is contained in reports filed with or furnished to the SEC by the registrant pursuant to Section 13 or
Section 15(d) of the Exchange Act that are incorporated by reference in the registration statement, or is contained in a form of prospectus filed pursuant
to Rule 424(b) that is part of the registration statement.
(2)

That, for the purpose of determining any liability under the Securities Act, each such post-effective amendment shall be deemed to be a
new registration statement relating to the securities offered therein, and the offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the
initial bona fide offering thereof.

(3)

To remove from registration by means of a post-effective amendment any of the securities being registered which remain unsold at the
termination of the offering.
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(4)

(5)

That, for purposes of determining liability under the Securities Act to any purchaser,
(i)

Each prospectus filed by the registrant pursuant to Rule 424(b)(3) shall be deemed to be part of the registration statement as of the
date the filed prospectus was deemed part of and included in the registration statement; and

(ii)

Each prospectus required to be filed pursuant to Rule 424(b)(2), (b)(5), or (b)(7) as part of a registration statement in reliance on
Rule 430B relating to an offering made pursuant to Rule 415(a)(1)(i), (vii), or (x) for the purpose of providing the information
required by Section 10(a) of the Securities Act shall be deemed to be part of and included in the registration statement as of the
earlier of the date such form of prospectus is first used after effectiveness or the date of the first contract of sale of securities in the
offering described in the prospectus. As provided in Rule 430B, for liability purposes of the issuer and any person that is at that
date an underwriter, such date shall be deemed to be a new effective date of the registration statement relating to the securities in
the registration statement to which that prospectus relates, and the offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the
initial bona fide offering thereof. Provided, however, that no statement made in a registration statement or prospectus that is part of
the registration statement or made in a document incorporated or deemed incorporated by reference into the registration statement
or prospectus that is part of the registration statement will, as to a purchaser with a time of contract of sale prior to such effective
date, supersede or modify any statement that was made in the registration statement or prospectus that was part of the registration
statement or made in any such document immediately prior to such effective date

That, for the purpose of determining liability of the registrant under the Securities Act to any purchaser in the initial distribution of the
securities, the undersigned registrant undertakes that in a primary offering of securities of the undersigned registrant pursuant to this
registration statement, regardless of the underwriting method used to sell the securities to the purchaser, if the securities are offered or sold
to such purchaser by means of any of the following communications, the undersigned registrant will be a seller to the purchaser and will be
considered to offer or sell such securities to such purchaser:
(i)

Any preliminary prospectus or prospectus of the undersigned registrant relating to the offering required to be filed pursuant to Rule
424;

(ii)

Any free writing prospectus relating to the offering prepared by or on behalf of the undersigned registrant or used or referred to by
the undersigned registrant;

(iii)

The portion of any other free writing prospectus relating to the offering containing material information about the undersigned
registrant or its securities provided by or on behalf of the undersigned registrant; and

(iv)

Any other communication that is an offer in the offering made by the undersigned registrant to the purchaser.

The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes that, for purposes of determining any liability under the Securities Act, each filing of the registrant’s
annual report pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act (and, where applicable, each filing of an employee benefit plan’s annual report
pursuant to Section 15(d) of the Exchange Act) that is incorporated by reference in the registration statement shall be deemed to be a new registration
statement relating to the securities offered therein, and the offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering
thereof.
The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes to file an application for the purpose of determining the eligibility of the trustee to act under subsection
(a) of Section 310 of the Trust Indenture Act in accordance with the rules and regulations prescribed by the SEC under Section 305(b)(2) of the Trust
Indenture Act.
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Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act may be permitted to directors, officers and controlling persons of the registrant
pursuant to the provisions described in Item 15 hereof, or otherwise, the registrant has been advised that in the opinion of the SEC such
indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act and is, therefore, unenforceable. In the event that a claim for indemnification
against such liabilities (other than the payment by the registrant of expenses incurred or paid by a director, officer or controlling person of the
registrant in the successful defense of any action, suit or proceeding) is asserted by such director, officer or controlling person in connection with the
securities being registered, the registrant will, unless in the opinion of its counsel the matter has been settled by controlling precedent, submit to a
court of appropriate jurisdiction the question whether such indemnification by it is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act and will be
governed by the final adjudication of such issue.
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EXHIBIT INDEX
Exhibit
Number

Document Description

1.1

Form of Underwriting Agreement Basic Provisions (with forms of Terms Agreement for Debt Securities, Common Stock and Preferred
Stock attached) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1.1 to Unisys Corporation’s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (Registration
No. 333-155735)).

1.2

Form of Underwriting Agreement (Warrants).*

1.3

Form of Underwriting Agreement (Stock Purchase Contracts).*

4.1

Senior Indenture dated as of June 1, 2012 by and between Unisys Corporation and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Unisys Corporation’s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (Registration No. 333-181874)).

4.2

Form of Senior Debt Security.*

4.3

Subordinated Indenture dated as of June 1, 2012 by and between Unisys Corporation and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to Unisys Corporation’s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (Registration No. 333-181874)).

4.4

Form of Subordinated Debt Security.*

4.5

Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Unisys Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Unisys Corporation’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on April 30, 2010).

4.6

Certificate of Amendment to Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Unisys Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 28, 2011).

4.7

Certificate of Amendment to Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Unisys Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 28, 2017).

4.8

By-Laws of Unisys Corporation, as amended through April 30, 2015 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.3 to the Company’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q filed on April 30, 2015).

4.9

Specimen Stock Certificate representing the Company’s common stock, par value $.01 per share.**

4.10

Form of Certificate of Designations with respect to preferred stock of Unisys Corporation.*

4.11

Form of Warrant Agreement.*

4.12

Form of Stock Purchase Contract.*

4.13

Form of Pledge Agreement with respect to Stock Purchase Contracts.*

5.1

Opinion of Pepper Hamilton LLP, as to the validity of the debt securities, common stock, preferred stock, warrants and stock purchase
contracts.**

12.1

Statement of Computation of Ratios of Earnings to Combined Fixed Charges and Preferred Stock Dividends (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 12 to Unisys Corporation’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2018).

23.1

Consent of KPMG LLP.**

23.2

Consent of Pepper Hamilton LLP (included in Exhibit 5.1).**

25.1

Statement of Eligibility on Form T-1 of Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as Trustee under Senior Indenture.**

25.2

Statement of Eligibility on Form T-1 of Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as Trustee under Subordinated Indenture.**

*
**

To be filed either by amendment or as an exhibit to a report filed under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and incorporated herein by
reference.
Filed herewith.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, the registrant certifies that it has reasonable grounds to believe that it meets all of the
requirements for filing on Form S-3 and has duly caused this Registration Statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized, in the City of Philadelphia, State of Pennsylvania, on June 12, 2018.
UNISYS CORPORATION
By:

/s/ Peter A. Altabef
Peter A. Altabef
Chairman, President
and Chief Executive Officer

POWER OF ATTORNEY
KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below does hereby make, constitute and appoint
Peter A. Altabef, Inder M. Singh and Gerald P. Kenney, and each one of them severally, his or her true and lawful attorneys-in-fact and agents, for such
person and in such person’s name, place and stead, to sign any and all amendments (including post-effective amendments) to this Registration
Statement and any Registration Statement (including any amendment thereto) for this offering that is to be effective upon filing pursuant to Rule 462
under the Securities Act and to file the same, with all exhibits thereto, and all other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and
Exchange Commission, and does hereby grant unto such attorneys-in-fact and agents, and each of them, full power and authority to do and perform
each and every act and thing requisite or necessary to be done in and about the premises, as fully to all intents and purposes as said person might or
could do in person, hereby ratifying and confirming all that such attorney-in-fact and agents and each of them may lawfully do or cause to be done by
virtue hereof.
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, this Registration Statement has been signed by the following persons in the capacities
indicated on June 12, 2018.
Signature

Title

/s/ Peter A. Altabef
Peter A. Altabef

Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ Inder M. Singh
Inder M. Singh

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

/s/ Michael M. Thomson
Michael M. Thomson

Vice President and Corporate Controller
(Principal Accounting Officer)

/s/ Jared L. Cohon
Jared L. Cohon

Director

/s/ Nathaniel A. Davis
Nathaniel A. Davis

Director

/s/ Denise K. Fletcher
Denise K. Fletcher

Director
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/s/ Philippe Germond
Philippe Germond

Director

/s/ Deborah Lee James
Deborah Lee James

Director

/s/ Paul E. Martin
Paul E. Martin

Director

/s/ Regina M. Paolillo
Regina M. Paolillo

Director

/s/ Lee D. Roberts
Lee D. Roberts

Director
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The following abbreviations, when used in the inscription on the face of this certificate, shall be construed as though they were written out in full according to applicable
laws or regulations:
TEN COM

- as tenants in common

UNIF GIFT MIN ACT -

TEN ENT - as tenants by the entireties

Custodian
(Cust)
under Uniform Gifts to Minors Act

(Minor)
(State)

JT TEN

- as joint tenants with right of survivorship
and not as tenants in common

UNIF TRF MIN ACT -

Custodian (until age

)

(Cust)
under Uniform Transfers to Minors Act
(Minor)

(State)

Additional abbreviations may also be used though not in the above list.
PLEASE INSERT SOCIAL SECURITY OR OTHER IDENTIFYING NUMBER
OF ASSIGNEE
For value received,

hereby sell, assign and transfer unto

(PLEASE PRINT OR TYPEWRITE NAME AND ADDRESS, INCLUDING POSTAL ZIP CODE, OF ASSIGNEE)

Shares
of the capital stock represented by the within Certificate, and do hereby irrevocably constitute and appoint
Attorney
to transfer the said stock on the books of the within-named Corporation with full power of substitution in the premises.
Dated:

20

Signature:
Signature:
Notice: The signature to this assignment must correspond with the name as
written upon the face of the certificate, in every particular, without
alteration or enlargement, or any change whatever.

Signature(s) Guaranteed: Medallion Guarantee Stamp
THE SIGNATURE(S) SHOULD BE GUARANTEED BY AN ELIGIBLE
GUARANTOR INSTITUTION (BANKS, STOCKBROKERS, SAVINGS AND
LOAN ASSOCIATIONS AND CREDIT UNIONS) WITH MEMBERSHIP IN
AN APPROVED SIGNATURE GUARANTEE MEDALLION PROGRAM,
PURSUANT TO S.E.C. RULE 17AD-15.

Exhibit 5.1

June 12, 2018
Unisys Corporation
801 Lakeview Drive, Suite 100
Blue Bell, Pennsylvania 19422
RE: Registration Statement on Form S-3
Ladies and Gentlemen:
We have acted as counsel for Unisys Corporation, a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), in connection with the filing of a Registration Statement
on Form S-3 under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Act”), with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) on the date hereof
(the “Registration Statement”) by the Company. The Registration Statement relates to the proposed offer and sale by the Company from time to time,
in one or more offerings, as set forth in the prospectus contained in the Registration Statement (the “Prospectus”) and as shall be set forth in one or
more supplements to the Prospectus (each, a “Prospectus Supplement”), of securities of the Company with an aggregate initial offering price not to
exceed $700,000,000.00 (the “Securities”), which may include any or all of the following: (i) shares of the Company’s common stock, par value $.01
per share (the “Common Stock”); (ii) shares in one or more series of the Company’s preferred stock, par value $1.00 per share and in one or more series
of the Company’s junior participating preferred stock (collectively, the “Preferred Stock”); (iii) one or more series of the Company’s senior debt
securities (the “Senior Debt Securities”), or subordinated debt securities (the “Subordinated Debt Securities,” and, together with the Senior Debt
Securities, the “Debt Securities”); (iv) warrants for the purchase of the Company’s Debt Securities, Common Stock or Preferred Stock, or any
combination of such shares and Debt Securities (the “Warrants”); and (v) stock purchase contracts for the Company’s Common Stock or other securities
(the “Stock Purchase Contracts”).
This opinion letter is being furnished in accordance with the requirements of Item 601(b)(5) of Regulation S-K under the Act.
In connection with this opinion letter, we have examined the Registration Statement and originals, or copies certified or otherwise identified to our
satisfaction, of (i) the Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company, as amended (the “Certificate”); (ii) the By-laws of the Company (the
“By-laws”); (iii) the senior indenture (the “Senior Indenture”) between the Company and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as trustee (the
“Trustee”), dated June 1, 2012; (iv) the subordinated indenture between the Company and the Trustee, dated June 1, 2012 (the “Subordinated
Indenture” and, together with the Senior Indenture, the “Indentures”); (v) certain resolutions of the Company’s Board of Directors relating to the
Registration Statement; and (viii) such other documents, records and other instruments as we have deemed appropriate for purposes of the opinions set
forth herein.
We have assumed the genuineness of all signatures, the legal capacity of all natural persons, the authenticity of the documents submitted to us as
originals, the conformity with the originals of all documents submitted to us as certified, facsimile or photostatic copies and the authenticity of the
originals of all documents submitted to us as copies. In making our examination of executed documents or documents to be executed, we have
assumed that the parties thereto, other than the Company, had or will have the power to enter into and perform all obligations thereunder and have also
assumed the due authorization by all requisite action, corporate or other, and execution and delivery by such parties of such documents and that such
documents constitute valid and binding obligations of such parties. With respect to matters of fact relevant to our opinions as set forth below, we have
relied upon certificates of officers of the Company, representations made by the Company in documents examined by us and representations of officers
of the Company. We have also obtained and relied upon such certificates and assurances from public officials as we have deemed necessary for the
purposes of our opinions set forth below.
For the purpose of the opinions set forth below, we have also assumed, without independent investigation or verification, that:
•
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the issuance, sale, number or amount, as the case may be, and terms of Securities to be offered from time to time will be duly authorized and
established, in accordance with the Certificate, the By-laws and applicable Delaware law (each, a “Corporate Action”), and will not conflict
with or constitute a breach of the terms of any agreement or instrument to which the Company is subject;

•

prior to the issuance of shares of one or more series of Preferred Stock, an appropriate Certificate of Designations relating to each such series
of Preferred Stock will have been duly authorized by Corporate Action and filed with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware;

•

the Senior Debt Securities will be issued under the Senior Indenture and the Subordinated Debt Securities will be issued under the
Subordinated Indenture;

•

to the extent that the obligations of the Company under the Indentures may depend upon such matters, the Trustee will be duly organized,
validly existing and in good standing under the laws of its jurisdiction of organization; that the Trustee will be duly qualified to engage in
the activities contemplated by the Indentures; that the Indentures have been or will have been duly authorized, executed and delivered by
the Trustee and constitute the legal, valid and binding obligation of the Trustee, enforceable against the Trustee in accordance with their
respective terms; that the Trustee will be in compliance, generally and with respect to acting as a trustee under the Indentures, with all
applicable laws and regulations; and that the Trustee will have the requisite organizational and legal power and authority to perform its
obligations under the Indentures;

•

any Warrants will be issued under one or more warrant agreements (each, a “Warrant Agreement”) between the Company and the entity
identified in the Warrant Agreement as a warrant agent (each, a “Warrant Agent”) and the execution, delivery and performance of the
applicable Warrant Agreement will be duly authorized by Corporate Action, and will not conflict with or constitute a breach of the terms of
any agreement or instrument to which the Company is subject;

•

to the extent that the obligations of the Company under any Warrant Agreement may depend upon such matters, each of the parties thereto,
other than the Company, will be duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of its jurisdiction of organization
and will be duly qualified to engage in the activities contemplated by such Warrant Agreement; that such Warrant Agreement will have
been duly authorized, executed and delivered by such party and will constitute the legal, valid and binding obligation of such party,
enforceable against such party in accordance with its terms; that such party will be in compliance, generally and with respect to acting as a
party with respect to its obligations under such Warrant Agreement, with all applicable laws and regulations; and that such party will have
the requisite organizational and legal power and authority to perform its obligations under such Warrant Agreement;

•

any Stock Purchase Contracts will be issued under one or more purchase contract agreements (each, a “Purchase Contract Agreement”)
between the Company and a purchase contract agent identified in the Purchase Contract Agreement as a purchase contract agent (each, a
“Purchase Contract Agent”), and the execution, delivery and performance of the applicable Purchase Contract Agreement will be duly
authorized by Corporate Action, and will not conflict with or constitute a breach of the terms of any agreement or instrument to which the
Company is subject;

•

to the extent that the obligations of the Company under any Purchase Contract Agreement may be dependent upon such matters, the
Purchase Contract Agent with respect to such Purchase Contract Agreement will be duly organized, validly existing and in good standing
under the laws of its jurisdiction of organization; that such Purchase Contract Agent will be duly qualified to engage in the activities
contemplated by such Purchase Contract Agreement; that such Purchase Contract Agreement will have been duly authorized, executed and
delivered by such Purchase Contract Agent and will constitute the legal, valid and binding obligation of such Purchase Contract Agent,
enforceable against such Purchase Contract Agent in accordance with its terms; that such Purchase Contract Agent will be in compliance,
generally and with respect to acting as a Purchase Contract Agent under such Purchase Contract Agreement, with all applicable laws and
regulations; and that such Purchase Contract Agent will have the requisite organizational and legal power and authority to perform its
obligations under such Purchase Contract Agreement;

•

the Registration Statement and any amendments thereto (including post effective amendments) will have become effective and such
effectiveness shall not have been terminated or rescinded and will comply with all applicable federal and state laws at the time the
Securities are offered and issued as contemplated by the Registration Statement;

•

a Prospectus Supplement will have been prepared, delivered (including through compliance with Rule 172 of the General Rules and
Regulations promulgated under the Act) and filed with the SEC describing the Securities offered thereby and will comply with all
applicable laws at the time the Securities are offered and issued as contemplated by the Registration Statement;

•

all Securities will be issued and sold in compliance with applicable federal and state securities laws; and

•

a definitive purchase, underwriting or similar agreement (each, a “Definitive Agreement”) with respect to any Securities offered or issued
will have been duly authorized and validly executed and delivered by the Company and the other parties thereto.

Subject to the foregoing and the other matters set forth herein, it is our opinion that, as of the date hereof:
1.

When the issuance and sale of shares of Common Stock have been duly authorized by Corporate Action and such shares of Common Stock
have been issued and delivered against payment for such shares (in an amount at least equal to the aggregate par value of such shares of
Common Stock) in accordance with the terms and provisions of the applicable Definitive Agreements, the terms of the Corporate Action
and as contemplated by the Registration Statement and the applicable Prospectus Supplement, and, if applicable, upon the conversion,
exchange or exercise of any other Securities in accordance with their respective terms, the terms of the Corporate Action and as
contemplated by the Registration Statement and the applicable Prospectus Supplement (which shall, in each case, provide for payment of
consideration that shall be at least equal to the aggregate par value of such shares of Common Stock), such shares of Common Stock will be
validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable.

2.

When the issuance and sale of shares of a series of Preferred Stock have been duly authorized by Corporate Action and such shares of
Preferred Stock have been issued and delivered against payment for such shares (in an amount at least equal to the aggregate par value of
such shares of Preferred Stock) in accordance with the terms and provisions of applicable Definitive Agreements, the terms of the Corporate
Action and as contemplated by the Registration Statement and the applicable Prospectus Supplement, and, if applicable, upon the
conversion, exchange or exercise of any other Securities in accordance with their respective terms, the terms of the Corporate Action and as
contemplated by the Registration Statement and the applicable Prospectus Supplement (which shall, in either case, provide for payment of
consideration at least equal to the aggregate par value of such shares of Preferred Stock), such shares of such series of Preferred Stock will
be validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable.

3.

When the specific terms of a particular issuance of Debt Securities have been duly authorized by Corporate Action and are in accordance
with the terms of the applicable Indenture, such Indenture has been duly qualified under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended, the
series of such Debt Securities has been created under the terms of the applicable Indenture, and such Debt Securities have been duly
executed, authenticated, completed, issued and delivered, against payment for such Debt Securities, in accordance with the terms and
provisions of the applicable Definitive Agreements, the terms of the Corporate Action and as contemplated by the Registration Statement
and the applicable Prospectus Supplement, and, if applicable, upon the conversion, exchange or exercise of any other Securities in
accordance with their respective terms, the terms of the Corporate Action and as contemplated by the Registration Statement and the
applicable Prospectus Supplement, such Debt Securities will be validly issued and will constitute valid, binding and enforceable
obligations of the Company, and such Indenture will constitute a valid, binding and enforceable obligation of the Company, enforceable
against the Company in accordance with its terms.

4.

When the Stock Purchase Contracts have been duly authorized by Corporate Action and duly executed and delivered against payment for
such Stock Purchase Contracts in accordance with the applicable Definitive Agreements, the terms of the Corporate Action and as
contemplated by the Registration Statement and the applicable Prospectus Supplement, the Stock Purchase Contracts will constitute valid
and binding obligations of the Company, enforceable against the Company in accordance with their terms.

5.

When a Warrant Agreement providing for the specific terms of a particular issuance of Warrants has been duly authorized by Corporate
Action and has been duly executed and delivered by the Company and the Warrant Agent named in such Warrant Agreement and such
Warrants, conforming to the requirements of such Warrant Agreement, have been duly countersigned or authenticated, as required, by such
Warrant Agent and duly executed and delivered by the Company against payment for such Warrants in accordance with the terms and
provisions of such Warrant Agreement and applicable Definitive Agreements, the terms of the Corporate Action and as contemplated by the
Registration Statement and the applicable Prospectus Supplement, such Warrants will be valid, binding and enforceable obligations of the
Company, enforceable against the Company in accordance with their terms.

The opinions set forth above as to enforceability may be limited by: (i) the effect of bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, fraudulent conveyance,
moratorium or other similar laws now or hereafter in effect relating to or affecting the rights or remedies of creditors generally; (ii) the effect of general
principles of equity, whether enforcement is considered in a proceeding in equity or at law, and the discretion of the court before which any proceeding
therefor may be brought; (iii) the unenforceability under certain circumstances under law or court decisions of provisions providing for the
indemnification of or contribution to a party with respect to a liability where such indemnification or contribution is contrary to public policy; or (iv)

requirements that a claim with respect to any Debt Securities in denominations other than in United States dollars (or a judgment denominated other
than into United States dollars in respect of the claim) be converted into United States dollars at a rate of exchange prevailing on a date determined by
applicable law.
The foregoing opinions are limited to the laws of the State of New York and the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware, and we express no
opinion with respect to the laws of any other state or jurisdiction. Although the Securities may be issued from time to time on a delayed or continuous
basis, the opinions expressed herein are limited to the laws, including rules and regulations, as in effect on the date hereof.
We hereby consent to the use of this opinion as Exhibit 5.1 to the Registration Statement and to the reference to us under the caption “Validity of
Securities” in the Prospectus. In giving such consent, we do not hereby admit that we are acting within the category of persons whose consent is
required under Section 7 of the Act or the rules or regulations of the SEC thereunder.
Very truly yours,
/s/ Pepper Hamilton LLP
Pepper Hamilton LLP

Exhibit 23.1
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
The board of directors
Unisys Corporation:
We consent to the use of our reports with respect to the consolidated financial statements and the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting incorporated by reference herein and to the reference to our firm under the heading “Experts” in the prospectus.
Our report dated March 12, 2018, on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2017, expresses our opinion that
Unisys Corporation did not maintain effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2017 because of the effect of a material
weakness on the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria and contains an explanatory paragraph that states a material weakness related to
ineffective risk assessment procedures, insufficient trained personnel, and ineffective process level control activities over Technology revenue has
been identified and included in management’s assessment.
/s/ KPMG LLP
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
June 12, 2018

UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM T-1
STATEMENT OF ELIGIBILITY
UNDER THE TRUST INDENTURE ACT OF 1939 OF A
CORPORATION DESIGNATED TO ACT AS TRUSTEE
☐

CHECK IF AN APPLICATION TO DETERMINE ELIGIBILITY OF A TRUSTEE PURSUANT TO
SECTION 305(b) (2)

WELLS FARGO BANK, NATIONAL
ASSOCIATION
(Exact name of trustee as specified in its charter)

A National Banking Association

94-1347393

(Jurisdiction of incorporation or
organization if not a U.S. national bank)

(I.R.S. Employer
Identification No.)

101 North Phillips Avenue
Sioux Falls, South Dakota

57104

(Address of principal executive offices)

(Zip code)

Wells Fargo & Company
Law Department, Trust Section
MAC N9305-175
Sixth Street and Marquette Avenue, 17 th Floor
Minneapolis, Minnesota 55479
(612) 667-4608
(Name, address and telephone number of agent for service)

UNISYS CORPORATION
(Exact name of obligor as specified in its charter)

Delaware

38-0387840

(State or other jurisdiction of
incorporation or organization)

(I.R.S. Employer
Identification No.)

801 Lakeview Drive, Suite 100
Blue Bell, Pennsylvania

19422

(Address of principal executive offices)

(Zip code)

Senior Debt Securities
(Title of the indenture securities)

Item 1. General Information. Furnish the following information as to the trustee:
(a)

Name and address of each examining or supervising authority to which it is subject.
Comptroller of the Currency
Treasury Department
Washington, D.C.
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
Washington, D.C.
Federal Reserve Bank of San Francisco
San Francisco, California 94120

(b)

Whether it is authorized to exercise corporate trust powers.
The trustee is authorized to exercise corporate trust powers.

Item 2. Affiliations with Obligor. If the obligor is an affiliate of the trustee, describe each such affiliation.
None with respect to the trustee.
No responses are included for Items 3-14 of this Form T-1 because the obligor is not in default as provided under Item 13.
Item 15. Foreign Trustee. Not applicable.
Item 16. List of Exhibits. List below all exhibits filed as a part of this Statement of Eligibility.
Exhibit 1. A copy of the Articles of Association of the trustee now in effect.*
Exhibit 2. A copy of the Comptroller of the Currency Certificate of Corporate Existence for Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, dated
January 14, 2015.*
Exhibit 3. A copy of the Comptroller of the Currency Certification of Fiduciary Powers for Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, dated
January 6, 2014.*
Exhibit 4. Copy of By-laws of the trustee as now in effect.*
Exhibit 5. Not applicable.
Exhibit 6. The consent of the trustee required by Section 321(b) of the Act.
Exhibit 7. A copy of the latest report of condition of the trustee published pursuant to law or the requirements of its supervising or examining
authority.
Exhibit 8. Not applicable.
Exhibit 9. Not applicable.
* Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the same number to the trustee’s Form T-1 filed as exhibit to the Filing 305B2 dated March 13, 2015 of
file number 333-190926.

SIGNATURE
Pursuant to the requirements of the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended, the trustee, Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, a national banking
association organized and existing under the laws of the United States of America, has duly caused this statement of eligibility to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, all in the City of New York and State of New York on the 5th day of June, 2018.
WELLS FARGO BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION
/s/Raymond Delli Colli
Raymond Delli Colli
Vice President

EXHIBIT 6
June 5, 2018
Securities and Exchange Commission
Washington, D.C. 20549
Gentlemen:
In accordance with Section 321(b) of the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended, the undersigned hereby consents that reports of examination of the
undersigned made by Federal, State, Territorial, or District authorities authorized to make such examination may be furnished by such authorities to the
Securities and Exchange Commission upon its request therefor.
Very truly yours,
WELLS FARGO BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION
/s/Raymond Delli Colli
Raymond Delli Colli
Vice President

Exhibit 7
Consolidated Report of Condition of
Wells Fargo Bank National Association
of 101 North Phillips Avenue, Sioux Falls, SD 57104
And Foreign and Domestic Subsidiaries,
at the close of business March 31, 2018, filed in accordance with 12 U.S.C. §161 for National Banks.
Dollar Amounts
In Millions

ASSETS
Cash and balances due from depository institutions:
Noninterest-bearing balances and currency and coin
Interest-bearing balances
Securities:
Held-to-maturity securities
Available-for-sale securities
Equity Securities with readily determinable fair value not held for trading
Federal funds sold and securities purchased under agreements to resell:
Federal funds sold in domestic offices
Securities purchased under agreements to resell
Loans and lease financing receivables:
Loans and leases held for sale
Loans and leases, net of unearned income
LESS: Allowance for loan and lease losses
Loans and leases, net of unearned income and allowance
Trading Assets
Premises and fixed assets (including capitalized leases)
Other real estate owned
Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries and associated companies
Direct and indirect investments in real estate ventures
Intangible assets
Goodwill
Other intangible assets
Other assets
Total assets
LIABILITIES
Deposits:
In domestic offices
Noninterest-bearing
Interest-bearing
In foreign offices, Edge and Agreement subsidiaries, and IBFs
Noninterest-bearing
Interest-bearing
Federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to repurchase:
Federal funds purchased in domestic offices
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase

$

17,369
184,177
141,338
255,739
91
62
33,549
8,236

921,233
9,937
911,296
47,470
8,067
564
12,080
95

$

22,467
17,972
55,960
1,716,532

$

1,300,220

419,558
880,662
57,496
740
56,756
8,394
6,610

Dollar Amounts
In Millions

Trading liabilities
Other borrowed money
(includes mortgage indebtedness and obligations under capitalized leases)
Subordinated notes and debentures
Other liabilities
Total liabilities

10,762

EQUITY CAPITAL
Perpetual preferred stock and related surplus
Common stock
Surplus (exclude all surplus related to preferred stock)
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive income
Other equity capital components
Total bank equity capital
Noncontrolling (minority) interests in consolidated subsidiaries
Total equity capital
Total liabilities, and equity capital
I, John R. Shrewsberry, Sr. EVP & CFO of the above-named bank do hereby declare that this Report of Condition has been prepared
in conformance with the instructions issued by the appropriate Federal regulatory authority and is true to the best of my knowledge
and belief.
John R. Shrewsberry
Sr. EVP & CFO
We, the undersigned directors, attest to the correctness of this Report of Condition and declare that it has been examined by us
and to the best of our knowledge and belief has been prepared in conformance with the instructions issued by the appropriate
Federal regulatory authority and is true and correct.
Directors
Enrique Hernandez, Jr
Federico F. Pena
James Quigley

$

125,409
11,864
31,546
1,552,301

$

0
519
112,560
53,885
-3,088
0
163,876
355
164,231
1,716,532

UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM T-1
STATEMENT OF ELIGIBILITY
UNDER THE TRUST INDENTURE ACT OF 1939 OF A
CORPORATION DESIGNATED TO ACT AS TRUSTEE
☐

CHECK IF AN APPLICATION TO DETERMINE ELIGIBILITY OF A TRUSTEE PURSUANT TO
SECTION 305(b) (2)

WELLS FARGO BANK, NATIONAL
ASSOCIATION
(Exact name of trustee as specified in its charter)

A National Banking Association

94-1347393

(Jurisdiction of incorporation or
organization if not a U.S. national bank)

(I.R.S. Employer
Identification No.)

101 North Phillips Avenue
Sioux Falls, South Dakota

57104

(Address of principal executive offices)

(Zip code)

Wells Fargo & Company
Law Department, Trust Section
MAC N9305-175
Sixth Street and Marquette Avenue, 17 th Floor
Minneapolis, Minnesota 55479
(612) 667-4608
(Name, address and telephone number of agent for service)

UNISYS CORPORATION
(Exact name of obligor as specified in its charter)

Delaware

38-0387840

(State or other jurisdiction of
incorporation or organization)

(I.R.S. Employer
Identification No.)

801 Lakeview Drive, Suite 100
Blue Bell, Pennsylvania

19422

(Address of principal executive offices)

(Zip code)

Subordinated Debt Securities
(Title of the indenture securities)

Item 1. General Information. Furnish the following information as to the trustee:
(a)

Name and address of each examining or supervising authority to which it is subject.
Comptroller of the Currency
Treasury Department
Washington, D.C.
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
Washington, D.C.
Federal Reserve Bank of San Francisco
San Francisco, California 94120

(b)

Whether it is authorized to exercise corporate trust powers.
The trustee is authorized to exercise corporate trust powers.

Item 2. Affiliations with Obligor. If the obligor is an affiliate of the trustee, describe each such affiliation.
None with respect to the trustee.
No responses are included for Items 3-14 of this Form T-1 because the obligor is not in default as provided under Item 13.
Item 15. Foreign Trustee. Not applicable.
Item 16. List of Exhibits. List below all exhibits filed as a part of this Statement of Eligibility.
Exhibit 1. A copy of the Articles of Association of the trustee now in effect.*
Exhibit 2. A copy of the Comptroller of the Currency Certificate of Corporate Existence for Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, dated
January 14, 2015.*
Exhibit 3. A copy of the Comptroller of the Currency Certification of Fiduciary Powers for Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, dated
January 6, 2014.*
Exhibit 4. Copy of By-laws of the trustee as now in effect.*
Exhibit 5. Not applicable.
Exhibit 6. The consent of the trustee required by Section 321(b) of the Act.
Exhibit 7. A copy of the latest report of condition of the trustee published pursuant to law or the requirements of its supervising or examining
authority.
Exhibit 8. Not applicable.
Exhibit 9. Not applicable.
* Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the same number to the trustee’s Form T-1 filed as exhibit to the Filing 305B2 dated March 13, 2015 of
file number 333-190926.

SIGNATURE
Pursuant to the requirements of the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended, the trustee, Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, a national banking
association organized and existing under the laws of the United States of America, has duly caused this statement of eligibility to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, all in the City of New York and State of New York on the 5th day of June, 2018.
WELLS FARGO BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION
/s/Raymond Delli Colli
Raymond Delli Colli
Vice President

EXHIBIT 6
June 5, 2018
Securities and Exchange Commission
Washington, D.C. 20549
Gentlemen:
In accordance with Section 321(b) of the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended, the undersigned hereby consents that reports of examination of the
undersigned made by Federal, State, Territorial, or District authorities authorized to make such examination may be furnished by such authorities to the
Securities and Exchange Commission upon its request therefor.
Very truly yours,
WELLS FARGO BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION
/s/Raymond Delli Colli
Raymond Delli Colli
Vice President

Exhibit 7
Consolidated Report of Condition of
Wells Fargo Bank National Association
of 101 North Phillips Avenue, Sioux Falls, SD 57104
And Foreign and Domestic Subsidiaries,
at the close of business March 31, 2018, filed in accordance with 12 U.S.C. §161 for National Banks.
Dollar Amounts
In Millions

ASSETS
Cash and balances due from depository institutions:
Noninterest-bearing balances and currency and coin
Interest-bearing balances
Securities:
Held-to-maturity securities
Available-for-sale securities
Equity Securities with readily determinable fair value not held for trading
Federal funds sold and securities purchased under agreements to resell:
Federal funds sold in domestic offices
Securities purchased under agreements to resell
Loans and lease financing receivables:
Loans and leases held for sale
Loans and leases, net of unearned income
LESS: Allowance for loan and lease losses
Loans and leases, net of unearned income and allowance
Trading Assets
Premises and fixed assets (including capitalized leases)
Other real estate owned
Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries and associated companies
Direct and indirect investments in real estate ventures
Intangible assets
Goodwill
Other intangible assets
Other assets
Total assets
LIABILITIES
Deposits:
In domestic offices
Noninterest-bearing
Interest-bearing
In foreign offices, Edge and Agreement subsidiaries, and IBFs
Noninterest-bearing
Interest-bearing
Federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to repurchase:
Federal funds purchased in domestic offices
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase

$

17,369
184,177
141,338
255,739
91
62
33,549
8,236

921,233
9,937
911,296
47,470
8,067
564
12,080
95

$

22,467
17,972
55,960
1,716,532

$

1,300,220

419,558
880,662
57,496
740
56,756
8,394
6,610

Dollar Amounts
In Millions

Trading liabilities
Other borrowed money
(includes mortgage indebtedness and obligations under capitalized leases)
Subordinated notes and debentures
Other liabilities
Total liabilities
EQUITY CAPITAL
Perpetual preferred stock and related surplus
Common stock
Surplus (exclude all surplus related to preferred stock)
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive income
Other equity capital components
Total bank equity capital
Noncontrolling (minority) interests in consolidated subsidiaries
Total equity capital
Total liabilities, and equity capital

10,762

I, John R. Shrewsberry, Sr. EVP & CFO of the above-named bank do hereby declare that this Report of Condition has been prepared
in conformance with the instructions issued by the appropriate Federal regulatory authority and is true to the best of my knowledge
and belief.
John R. Shrewsberry
Sr. EVP & CFO
We, the undersigned directors, attest to the correctness of this Report of Condition and declare that it has been examined by us
and to the best of our knowledge and belief has been prepared in conformance with the instructions issued by the appropriate
Federal regulatory authority and is true and correct.
Directors
Enrique Hernandez, Jr
Federico F. Pena
James Quigley

$

125,409
11,864
31,546
1,552,301

$

0
519
112,560
53,885
-3,088
0
163,876
355
164,231
1,716,532

